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STREET ADDRESS: 1702 Gordon Avenue HISTORIC NAME : Wood-Bidgood House

MAP & PARCEL : 9-1 DATE / PERIOD: 1891, c. 1910
CENSUS TRACT AND BLOCK: STYLE :

PRESENT ZONING: R-2 HEIGHT (to cornice) OR STORIES: 24 storeys ;
ORIGINAL OWNER: Thomas T. Wood DIMENSIONS AND LAND AREA: 100' x 80.5' (8,050 sq. ft.)
ORIGINAL USE: Residence CONDITION : Good
PRESENT USE : Fraterni ty House SURVEYOR : Bibb
PRESENT OWNER: Column Club, Inc. (Phi Sigma Kappa) DATE OF SURVEY : Winter, 1982
ADDRESS | P- 0. Box 254 SOURCES City/County Records
Chiville, VA 22902 Sanborn Map Co., - 1920

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION

This house apparently originally faced east toward Seventeenth Street. Later, after the addition of a west wing,

it was re-oriented toward Gordon Avenue on the north, ignering the lack of continuity between the two sections. The
original section is 2% storeys tall, two bays wide (eastern elevation) and double pile. It is set on a low brick
foundation with a full basement. Walls are stuccoed and painted white with black trim. It has a high-pitched hip
roof with steep gables over projecting bays on the east and north and an extension of the hip roof over a semi-
octagonal projecting bay on the south side. The roof is covered with slate and has exposed rafter ends. There is
one interior chimney with a small cap. There are two hip-roofed, stuccoed dormers on the south elevation, each

with ab-light casement window with plain trim. There is a shed-roofed, slate-walled dormer with a pai'r of 4-light
casement windows on the west elevation. A semi-elliptical arched third storey balcony with a broad and steep

gable roof is set into the roof in-:the north bay of the east facade. It has a door flanked by two small windows

in a Palladian window effect. Below it, the roof bends into a steeper shed roof above the entrance. The large
windows are double-sash, 2-over-2 light, with architrave trim. Some are arranged in pairs, and they are nearly

the same height at all three levels. Windows in the side planes of the semi-octagonal bay are narrow 1-over-1 light
and in the center plane are paired l-over-1 at the 2nd level and a single wide 3-over-3 at the first level. There
is a pair of 6-1ight casement windows above the east entrance. At one time a one-storey veranda covered the east
facade. It was replaced with a small entrance porch c. 1920. There is a nearly identical porch on the north
facade. They have steep hip roofs covered with slate with boxed cornice, plain frieze, square pillars (paired on the
east porch), no balustrade, and brick-bordered concrete floors. The north porch has built-in wooden benches between
the pillars. Both entrance doors are.mul ti:=1ight over four panels with architrave trim. The east door is somewhat
wider, and the north door has a 2-1ight rectangular transom. |n the eastern bay of the south elevation, there is a
pair of French doors with a transom, sheltered by a slate shed-roofed hood. This would suggest that there was once
a veranda. there, but the Sanborn maps do not show one. The 2-storey west wing nearly doubles the size of the

house. It has a low-pitched hip roof which dips into a steeper pitched shed roof at the western end. It is covered
with standing-seam metal and has exposed rafter ends. Because of the slope of the land, the basement is above

ground at the west and south. The walls are stuccoed, and the windows on the north facade are similar to those

in the original section.

HISTORICAL DESCRIPTLON

Thomas T. Wood purchased three lots in Preston Heights in 1891 (ACDB 95-383) and built this house the same year,
according to tax records. He sold it to Mrs. Belle M. Bidgood in 1902 (ACDB 123-243). Tax records suggest that

the addition was built c. 1910 by Mrs. Bidgood's children, to whom she had left the house in 1909 (ACWB 31-437).
Ellen S. Shaw bought the house from the Bidgoods in 1927 (City DB 58-116) and sold it in 193] to A. P. Walker

(DB 74-111), who - sold it to Annie Atkinson Walker (Mrs. Charles M. Walker) in 1941 (DB 108-247) . Apparently it
was the Walkers who stuccoed the house and changed its orientation from Seventeenth Street to Gordon Avenue. In 1952
Mrs. Walker sold the house to Chi Corporation of Zeta Beta Tau for use as a fraternity house (DB 164-397). In

1958 Zeta Beta Tau purchased a house on Maury Avenue and sold this house to Allen J. Berry, et al (DB 204-432),

who immediately resold it to Column Club, Inc. (DB 208-322), the house corporation of Phi Sigma Kappa fraternity
which has occupied the house since that time.
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STREET ADDRESS: 1702 Gordon Avenue HISTORIC NAME . Wood-Bidgood House
MAP & PARCEL: 91 DATE / PERIOD 1891, c. 1910

CENSUS TRACT AND BLOCK: STYLE :

PRESENT ZONING: R-2 HEIGHT (fo cornice) OR STORIES: 21 storeys

ORIGINAL OWNER: Thomas T. Wood DIMENSIONS AND LAND AREA: 100' x 80.5' (8,050 sq. ft.)
ORIGINAL USE: Residence ‘ CONDITION Good

PRESENT USE : Fraternity House SURVEYOR : Bibb

PRESENT OWNER  Column Club, Inc. (Phi Sigma Kappa) DATE OF SURVEY ; Winter, 1982

ADDRESS . P- 0. Box 25k SOURCES City/County Records
Chlville, VA 22302 Sanborn Map Co., - 1920

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION

This house apparently originally faced east toward Seventeenth Street. Later, after the addition of a west wing,

it was re-oriented toward Gordon Avenue on the north, ignering the lack of continuity between the two sections. The
original section is 2% storeys tall, two bays wide (eastern elevation) and double pile. It is set on a low brick
foundation with a full basement. Walls are stuccoed and painted white with black trim. [t has a high-pitched hip
roof with steep gables over projecting bays on the east and north and an extension of the hip roof over a semi-
octagonal projecting bay on the south side. The roof is covered with slate and has exposed rafter ends. There is
one interior chimney with a small cap. There are two hip-roofed, stuccoed dormers on the south elevation, each

with ak-1ight casement window with plain trim. There is a shed-roofed, slate-walled dormer with a pair of L-light
casement windows on the west elevation. A semi-elliptical arched third storey balcony with a broad and steep

gable roof is set into the roof in:the north bay of the east facade. It has a door flanked by two small windows

in a Palladian window effect. Below it, the roof bends into a steeper shed roof above the entrance. The large
windows are double-sash, 2-over-2 light, with architrave trim. Some are arranged in pairs, and they are nearly

the same height at all three levels. Windows in the side planes of the semi-octagonal bay are narrow l-over-1 light
and in the center plane are paired l-over-1 at the 2nd level and a single wide 3-over-3 at the first level. There
is a pair of 6~1light casement windows above the east entrance. At one time a one-storey veranda covered the east
facade. It was replaced with a small entrance porch c. 1920. There is a nearly identical porch on the north
facade. They have steep hip roofs covered with slate with boxed cornice, plain frieze, square pillars (paired on the
east porch), no balustrade, and brick-bordered concrete floors. The north porch has built-in wooden benches between
the pillars. Both entrance doors aremulti-light over four panels with architrave trim. The east door is somewhat
wider, and the north door has a 2-light rectangular transom. In the eastern bay of the south elevation, there is a
pair of French doors with a transom, sheltered by a slate shed-roofed hood. This would suggest that there was once
a veranda there, but the Sanborn maps do not show one. The 2-storey west wing nearly doubles the size of the

house. It has a low-pitched hip roof which dips into a steeper pitched shed roof at the western end. It is covered
with standing-seam metal and has exposed rafter ends. Because of the slope of the land, the basement is above

ground at the west and south. The walls are stuccoed, and the windows on the north facade are similar to those

in the original section.

HISTORICAL DESCRIPTEON

Thomas T. Wood purchased three lots in Preston Heights in 1891 (ACDB 95-383) and built this house the same year,
according to tax records. He sold it to Mrs. Belle M. Bidgood in 1902 (ACDB 123-243). Tax records suggest that

the addition was built c. 1910 by Mrs. Bidgood's children, to whom she had left the house in 1909 (ACWB 31-437).
Ellen S. Shaw bought the house from the Bidgoods.in 1927 (City DB 58-116) and sold it in 1931 to A. P. Walker

(DB 74-111), who : sold it to Annie Atkinson Walker (Mrs. Charles M. Walker) in 1941 (DB 108-247). Apparently it
was the Walkers who stuccoed the house and changed its orientation from Seventeenth Street to Gordon Avenue. In 1952
Mrs. Walker sold the house to Chi Corporation of Zeta Beta Tau for use as a fraternity house (DB 164-397). In

1958 Zeta Beta Tau purchased a house on Maury Avenue and sold this house to Allen J. Berry, et al (DB 204-432),

who immediately resold it to Column Club, Inc. (DB 208-322), the house corporation of Phi Sigma Kappa fraternity
which has occupied the house since that time.
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A
HISTORIC LANDMARKS CO

HISTORIC DISTRICT SURVEY FORM

(see also 3 attached sheets)

File No. 104-130
SSION 130

Negative no(s).

ysnéaadmess 1702 Gordon Ave.
Town/City Charlottesville

Historicname Wood-Bidgood House

Commonname Phi Sigma Kappa Fraternity House

[D/woodframe(siding: 0 weatherboard, [ shingle, [J aluminum, O bricktex, O
O brick(bond: [J Flemish, O stretcher, [ -course American, [

[3 stone(O randomrubble, O randomashitar, [0 coursed ashlar,

iAaterial O log(siding: [0 weatherboard, (0 shingle, [J aluminum, (] bricktex, []

stucco
{0 concrete block
[0 enameled steel

]

[J castiron
] ter acotta
(1 glass and metal

O other:
Number of Stories Roof Type Roof Material
g 1 & 2% . O shed O mansard T-slate O tile
O 1% O 3 (¥ gable 0 gambrel 0 wood shingle O pressed tin
02 o (J pediment J parapet 1 composition O not visible
IQ‘/hipped 0 flat (J standing seam metal
O other: [J other
Dormers Number of bays — Main facade
13/0 O 3 J shed [0 hipped 1 0 4 07z
a1 ' O gable m) 02 O s O s
a2 O O pedimented o3 ‘\:7'””' . O 6 O
Stories Bays General description
no &1 0O 3 O 1(centey [ 2 0O 4 Two small hipped-roofed porches
02 0O ___ [B-9 (side) 03 0O ~ with paired square posts.
uilding type
& detached house (0 garage [ government O industrial
O detached town house O farmhouse 0 commercial {office) [J school
[J row house O apartment building 0 commercial (store) ] vchurch
O double house 0O gas station O railroad " fraternity house
yle/period Queen Anne Date 197/; ¢. /7« Architect/builder
cation and description of entrance two entrances; one on Gordon and one of 17th St.

Miscellaneous descriptive information {plan, exterior and interior decoration,
cornice/eave type, window type and trim, chimneys, additions, alterations)

This house is distinguished from others in the
neighborhood by its stucco cladding, double entrances
complex roofline, and gable pierced by an arch that
provides

an attic-level porch.

Historical information

This house originally faced on 17th Street.
It served as the home of Zeta Beta Tau fraternity
house ca.i152-1958. Since 1958 it has been home to
Phi Sigma Kappa fraternity.

Corks & Curls, 1954 and 1968; City Landmarks survey;

Sourc

e

Eugenia Bibb; Real Estate Dept., etc.
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#yz7 | /1708 Gordon Avenze
CITY OF CHARLOTTESVILLE

Department of Community Development

City Hall
Charlottesville, Virginia 22902




